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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY 
THE OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING: 

APPLICATION OF BETTIS, BOYLE AND STOVALL 
TO REOPEN CASE 12,601 AND AMEND ORDER 
NO. R-11,573 TO ADDRESS THE APPROPRIATE 
ROYALTY BURDENS ON THE PROPOSED WELL FOR 
PURPOSES OF THE CHARGE FOR RISK INVOLVED 
IN DRILLING SAID WELL, LEA COUNTY, 
NEW MEXICO 

CASE NO. 12,601 

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

EXAMINER HEARING 

BEFORE: MICHAEL E. STOGNER, Hearing Examiner 

C3 CD 

May 31st, 2001 

Santa Fe, New Mexico co 
CO 

cr. 

This matter came on f o r hearing before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , MICHAEL E. STOGNER, 

Hearing Examiner, on Thursday, May 31st, 2001, a t the New 

Mexico Energy, Minerals and Nat u r a l Resources Department, 

1220 South Saint Francis Drive, Room 102, Santa Fe, New 

Mexico, Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter No. 7 

f o r the State of New Mexico. 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

10:42 a.m.: 

EXAMINER STOGNER: This hearing w i l l come t o 

order. At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l Reopened Case 12,601, which 

i s t he A p p l i c a t i o n of B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l t o reopen 

Case 12,601 and amend Order Number R-11,573 t o address the 

ap p r o p r i a t e r o y a l t y burdens on the proposed w e l l f o r 

purposes of the charge f o r r i s k i n v o l v e d i n d r i l l i n g s a i d 

w e l l , Lea County, New Mexico. 

Order Number R-11,573 was a compulsory p o o l i n g 

order f o r a w e l l , so a t t h i s time I ' l l c a l l f o r appearances 

i n t h i s reopened case. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, my name i s 

W i l l i a m F. Carr w i t h the Santa Fe o f f i c e of Holland and 

Hart, L.L.P. We represent B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l i n 

t h i s matter, and I have one witness. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

MR. CAVIN: Mr. Examiner, my name i s Sealy Cavin. 

I'm an att o r n e y w i t h S t r a t t o n and Cavin i n Albuquerque, and 

we represent Sun-West O i l and Gas, Inc. And we have no 

witnesses. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Are the r e any other 

appearances? 

W i l l the witness please stand t o be sworn a t t h i s 

time? Why don't you come on up here? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, I have j u s t a very b r i e f 

statement. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Mr. Examiner, as you noted, t h i s 

reopened case involves a compulsory p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n . 

By Order Number R-11,573, entered i n Case 12,601 on A p r i l 

the 2 6th of t h i s year, the D i v i s i o n entered an order 

g r a n t i n g an a p p l i c a t i o n of B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l and 

po o l i n g c e r t a i n spacing u n i t s i n Section 30, Township 9 

South, Range 33 East. The order imposed a 200-percent r i s k 

p e n a l t y on those i n t e r e s t owners who d i d n ' t v o l u n t a r i l y 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . 

When the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , c e r t a i n i n t e r e s t s 

were unleased mineral i n t e r e s t s . A f t e r the a p p l i c a t i o n was 

f i l e d and p r i o r t o the time the order was entered, one of 

the p a r t i e s leased those i n t e r e s t s , and w i t h t h e lease 

created a 27-1/2-percent r o y a l t y burden on t h a t t r a c t . 

We today are before you asking you t o t r e a t the 

pr o p e r t y as i t was when the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , and t o 

t r e a t the pr o p e r t y as i f i t were encumbered w i t h a one-acre 

12-1/2-percent r o y a l t y , not a 27-1/2-percent r o y a l t y . 

I w i l l c a l l a land witness t o review the land 

p o r t i o n of the case, b a s i c a l l y t o l a y out the chronology of 

what happened, and then I have a l e g a l argument. 
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MR. CAVIN: I don't have any opening statement. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Cavin? 

MR. CAVIN: I don't have one. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Oh, you don't. I'm s o r r y , I 

thought you said you had one. 

Okay, l e t ' s see. Also f o r the record, Order 

Number R-11,57 3, t h a t was issued on A p r i l the 2 6th. The 

hearing date on t h a t was A p r i l 19th. I t shows March 22nd, 

but t h a t was — 

MR. CARR: The hearing date was a c t u a l l y the 

19th. And also i n the order, Mr. Examiner, an 8 0-acre u n i t 

was pooled on a 40 acre u n i t , and I b e l i e v e t h e names of 

the pools were reversed i n t h a t , so t h a t also probably 

needs t o be corrected. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So noted, Mr. Carr. Thank you 

f o r c a l l i n g t h a t d r a f t i n g e r r o r t o my a t t e n t i o n . 

Thank you. Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time, Mr. Stogner, we c a l l 

Mark Maloney. 

C. MARK MALONEY, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the record, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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please? 

A. Yes, my name i s Mark Maloney. 

Q. Where do you reside? 

A. I l i v e i n Roswell, New Mexico. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. I'm an independent landman. 

Q. And i n t h i s case what i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h 

B e t t i s , Boyle and St o v a l l ? 

A. They are my c l i e n t . 

Q. Did you do the land work t h a t was i n v o l v e d as a 

p r e d i c a t e t o the compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t was 

the s u b j e c t of the o r i g i n a l hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Did you t e s t i f y a t the A p r i l 19th Examiner 

Hearing on the o r i g i n a l p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. At the time of t h a t testimony, were your 

c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert i n petroleum land matters accepted 

and made a matter of record? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n which was 

f i l e d t o reopen the case and address t h i s r o y a l t y issue? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Have you prepared e x h i b i t s f o r p r e s e n t a t i o n f o r 

today? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARR: Are the witness's q u a l i f i c a t i o n s 

acceptable? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I s there any ob j e c t i o n ? 

MR. CAVIN: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) Mr. Maloney, would you b r i e f l y 

summarize what B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l seeks w i t h t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , we are asking f o r an order reducing the 

r o y a l t y burden on Sun-West O i l and Gas lease t o 12 1/2 

percent, or 1/8, as opposed t o the 27 1/2 percent t h a t they 

have c u r r e n t l y burdened the i n t e r e s t w i t h . 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked f o r 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as E x h i b i t Number 1. Would you i d e n t i f y and 

review t h i s , please? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s the e x h i b i t f o r our McGuffin 

prospect, the land p l a t which was the same e x h i b i t t h a t was 

p r e v i o u s l y introduced i n the A p r i l 19th hearing. The 

yello w h i g h l i g h t i n g represents the leasehold i n the west 

h a l f of Section 30 t h a t B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l , e t a l . , 

own. The crosshached area i s our proposed w e l l s i t e f o r 

the McGuffin "C" Number 1 w e l l , l o cated i n Lot 3 a t a 

standard l o c a t i o n . 

Q. You've i n d i c a t e d a 4 0-acre t r a c t around t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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wel l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t was pooled by the order entered 

f o l l o w i n g the A p r i l 19th hearing? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , f o r the r i g h t s from surface t o 

the base of the Bough C formation. 

Q. And t h a t order also pooled Lots 3 and 4, or the 

west h a l f of the southwest equivalent of t h i s s e c t i o n ; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . The Bough C i n here would be on a 

40-acre, and the only other p o s s i b i l i t y f o r p r o d u c t i o n , i t 

appears, i s the San Andres, which i s f a i r l y remote, but 

t h a t ' s on an 8 0 i n t h a t area, the McGuffin — Excuse me, 

the South F l y i n g M, I b e l i e v e . Yeah. 

Q. Would you go t o what has been marked as B e t t i s , 

Boyle and S t o v a l l E x h i b i t Number 2 and i d e n t i f y t h i s , 

please? 

A. These were the i n t e r e s t s t h a t were pooled a t our 

A p r i l 19th hearing t h a t we sought t o pool and have. Sun-

West O i l and Gas, Inc., w i t h the l a r g e s t i n t e r e s t t h e r e , a 

3/2 0 mineral i n t e r e s t , 15 percent; L a r r y Kent K i r b y w i t h a 

small i n t e r e s t of 1/320 or 1 acre, approximately; Thomas 

Wiley Neal, I I I , T r u st, again w i t h a very small i n t e r e s t , 

1/80. Those were unlocatable owners. 

Q. Mr. Maloney, these set f o r t h the i n t e r e s t s t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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were s u b j e c t t o poo l i n g i n the o r i g i n a l case; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And these are the i n t e r e s t s as you understood 

them t o be a t the time the A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. What has happened t o the Sun-West O i l and Gas, 

I n c . , i n t e r e s t since the time the o r i g i n a l p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d ? 

A. They leased t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o Gulf Coast O i l and 

Gas, I n c . , approximately three weeks a f t e r we f i l e d our 

a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked as B e t t i s , Boyle 

and S t o v a l l E x h i b i t Number 3. Would you i d e n t i f y t h i s and 

review i t f o r the Examiner? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h i s i s a chronology of the 

correspondence, e t cetera, d e a l i n g w i t h Sun-West, attempts 

t o lease Sun-West or o b t a i n j o i n d e r , beginning back i n 

December, mid-December of 2 000, through recent e f f o r t s on 

our p a r t . 

Again, our f i r s t o f f e r was back i n mid-December, 

a l e t t e r , f o l l o w e d up again, second l e t t e r , January 20th. 

We had had several phone c a l l s , conversations, i n between. 

Q. Were these contacts f o r the purpose of att e m p t i n g 

t o lease the acreage and b r i n g t h i s t r a c t v o l u n t a r i l y i n t o 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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the w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And what was the issue i n your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h 

Sun-West O i l and Gas, Inc.? 

A. P r i m a r i l y i t was the r o y a l t y . We had o f f e r e d 

3/16 r o y a l t y and they requested 2 5 percent and asked f o r an 

a d d i t i o n a l bonus higher than we were paying as w e l l . 

Q. Was a 2 5-percent r o y a l t y acceptable t o B e t t i s , 

Boyle and S t o v a l l ? 

A. No, s i r , i t was not. 

Q. What were the plans of B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l 

i n terms of t i m i n g f o r the development of t h i s acreage? 

A. Well, we had hoped t o get t h i s w e l l d r i l l e d i n 

the f i r s t q u a rter of t h i s year. But again, r i g s were 

t i g h t . We've had t h i s matter come up, and we're s t i l l 

w a i t i n g . Location i s b u i l t , but we have plans on d r i l l i n g 

r i g h t away. 

Q. When d i d you f i l e your A p p l i c a t i o n f o r compulsory 

pooling? 

A. I be l i e v e t h a t was f i l e d January 30th. 

Q. And was t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n provided t o Sun-West i n 

accordance w i t h OCD r u l e s and re g u l a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t was. 

Q. And when was i t provided t o them? 

A. February 6th was when they signed the n o t i c e . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. And what happened a f t e r t h a t ? 

A. Again, I had asked f o r them t o reconsider January 

3 0t h , asked f o r a 3 0-day — excuse me, i n my l e t t e r of 

January 2 0th had asked f o r 3 0 days w i t h i n — f o r another 

attempt here. 

But we got n o t i c e February the 20th, I b e l i e v e i t 

was, they sent a l e t t e r t o you and faxed a copy t o me, t h a t 

they had leased t h i s t o Gulf Coast O i l and Gas. 

Q. Was t h a t lease a c t u a l l y recorded? 

A. I t was not. The f i r s t time they sent i t t o us 

they l e f t o f f the se c t i o n i n the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n . They 

had, again, included the acreage only t h a t we had asked f o r 

i n our order, Lots 3 and 4, although they owned undivided 

m i n e r a l i n t e r e s t throughout the west h a l f of Section 30. 

I was confident t h a t was the r i g h t acreage, but 

they again l e f t o f f the f u l l l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n . 

They followed up the next day w i t h a c o r r e c t e d 

copy. The lease was acknowledge, I b e l i e v e , February the 

15th, and then i t was a c t u a l l y recorded i n Lea County 

February the 21st. 

Q. We've got two copies of a chronology i n t h i s 

e x h i b i t behind those pages. I s t h a t a copy of the o i l and 

gas lease t h a t was recorded i n Lea County on February the 

21st? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. What d i d you do a f t e r t h i s ? Did you contact Gulf 

Coast O i l and Gas Company? 

A. Yes, s i r , we d i d . I n March of t h i s year we sent 

a l e t t e r , not being sure t h a t Gulf Coast and Sun-West were 

the same e n t i t y , but we sent a l e t t e r t o Gulf Coast on 

March the 22nd, again asking them t o — b a s i c a l l y 

e x p l a i n i n g what we had done w i t h Sun-West, where we were, 

and i n f o r m i n g them of the f o r c e - p o o l i n g hearing. 

And they contacted me the f o l l o w i n g day. Again, 

t h a t l e t t e r was sent the 22nd. 

And March 2 3rd, Mr. Spear, Shane Spear, who i s 

the p r e s i d e n t of Sun-West O i l and Gas, c a l l e d and s a i d , 

Yeah, we're b a s i c a l l y the same, same f a m i l y ownership. I 

t h i n k t h e r e might be l i t t l e s l i g h t d i f f e r e n c e i n the stock, 

I don't know. But e s s e n t i a l l y they were the same e n t i t y . 

Q. When you say the same e n t i t y , you mean Sun-West 

and Gulf Coast? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Did you discuss w i t h them the a b i l i t y of B e t t i s , 

Boyle and S t o v a l l t o ca r r y a 27-1/2-percent r o y a l t y 

i n t e r e s t — 

A. Yes, s i r , i n my l e t t e r t o them of March 22nd, 

which again t h a t l e t t e r was p r e v i o u s l y submitted i n our 

A p r i l 19th hearing, but I t o l d them t h a t we could not — 

25-percent r o y a l t y we couldn't c a r r y , and we couldn't c a r r y 
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15-percent working i n t e r e s t , t h a t was not — i t was too 

r i s k y . 

Q. Are the l e t t e r s t h a t are referenced i n t h i s 

chronology l e t t e r s t h a t were introduced and admitted i n t o 

evidence a t the A p r i l 19th hearing on the p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What e f f o r t d i d you make a f t e r you discovered 

t h a t Gulf Coast had leased t h i s p r o p e r t y , what e f f o r t d i d 

you make t o determine e x a c t l y who they were? 

A. Again, they had a Midland address, post o f f i c e 

box address. I d i d not know at t h a t time of t h e 

r e l a t i o n s h i p between them. 

I c a l l e d a f r i e n d of mine w i t h Mewbourne O i l 

Company who does a l o t of dealings w i t h people i n Midland, 

and he looked i t up i n h i s d i r e c t o r y and he c a l l e d back and 

sa i d , I t h i n k they're the same people. They showed up i n 

Armstrong w i t h e x a c t l y the same names, same post o f f i c e box 

address, same phone numbers, same — 

Q. When you say they showed up in Armstrong Oil 

Directory? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i t was there t h a t they had the same o f f i c e r s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Same address? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Same telephone number? 

A. Exactly. 

Q. When you contacted Gulf Coast d i d you also a t 

t h a t time t a l k t o Mr. Spear? 

A. Yes, again my f i r s t contact w i t h Gulf Coast was 

by l e t t e r , and then Mr. Spear contacted me by phone the 

f o l l o w i n g day. 

Q. I s t h i s the same i n d i v i d u a l w i t h whom you had 

made contact when you were d e a l i n g w i t h t h i s i n the name of 

Sun-West? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Could you j u s t t e l l us what impact a higher 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t w i l l have on B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l ' s 

e f f o r t s t o d r i l l the well? 

A. Well, as we p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d , t h i s was and i s 

a r i s k y prospect, and we have s a i d from the g i t - g o t h a t we 

needed as high a net revenue i n t e r e s t as we could, t h a t a 

25-percent, i n the opinion of our engineer, who I b e l i e v e 

i n the e x h i b i t t h a t Mr. Stubbs p r e v i o u s l y entered i n t o 

testimony was — the r i s k f a c t o r was j u s t too heavy w i t h 

the 75 percent, t h a t revenue i n t e r e s t on i n t e r e s t . 

Q. I s B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l E x h i b i t Number 4 an 

a f f i d a v i t c o n f i r m i n g t h a t n o t i c e of today's hearing has 

been provided i n accordance w i t h OCD rul e s ? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you have n o t i f i e d , as shown on E x h i b i t A, a 

number of i n d i v i d u a l s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And who d i d you n o t i f y ? 

A. These were the p a r t i e s t h a t were not leased of 

record or j o i n e d a t the date of our o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. And some of these i n d i v i d u a l s have committed t o 

the w e l l , have they not? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , s i r . 

Q. Were B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l E x h i b i t s 1 through 

4 prepared by you or compiled a t your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , they were. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, a t t h i s time we move the 

admission i n t o evidence of B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l 

E x h i b i t s 1 through 4. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s — I'm s o r r y , i s 

th e r e any objection? 

MR. CAVIN: No, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my d i r e c t 

examination of Mr. Maloney. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Carr. 

Mr. Cavin, your witness. 
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MR. CAVIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CAVIN: 

Q. Mr. Maloney, I wanted t o ask you a few questions 

about the A p r i l 19th hearing. I b e l i e v e you t e s t i f i e d a t 

t h a t hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And d i d you review the t r a n s c r i p t , have you 

reviewed the t r a n s c r i p t of t h a t hearing? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Okay, but you prepared some of the e x h i b i t s t h a t 

were presented a t t h a t hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And do you remember what B e t t i s , Boyle and 

S t o v a l l was asking f o r a t t h a t hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r , we were t r y i n g t o , again, pool a l l of 

the uncommitted i n t e r e s t s i n the Lots 3 and 4 f o r the Bough 

C t e s t . 

Q. Okay, and s p e c i f i c a l l y , Sun-West i n t e r e s t , do you 

remember what you were asking f o r a t t h a t hearing on A p r i l 

19th? 

A. That any i n t e r e s t owner e i t h e r j o i n or be pooled 

f o r the d r i l l i n g of t h a t w e l l . 

Q. Well, weren't you e s s e n t i a l l y asking f o r the same 

t h i n g you're asking f o r today, t h a t they be t r e a t e d as 
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unleased i n t e r e s t owner? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. I'm so r r y , you have t o speak up. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And has anything changed since t h a t 

hearing date, any m a t e r i a l f a c t t h a t ' s changed, t o your 

knowledge? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Has B e t t i s ' p o s i t i o n changed i n any way, 

i n a m a t e r i a l sense? 

A. No, not t h a t I know o f . 

Q. And you t e s t i f i e d about t h i s a t t h a t hearing, 

d i d n ' t you? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Now, I was going t o ask you about your 

e f f o r t s t o lease the Sun-West i n t e r e s t . Do you f e e l l i k e 

you made a good f a i t h e f f o r t t o o b t a i n a v o l u n t a r y 

agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay, and what d i d you o f f e r them? 

A. Our o r i g i n a l o f f e r was $50 an acre and a 3/16 f o r 

a three-year o i l and gas lease. This same t r a c t had been 

leased p r e v i o u s l y about four — I b e l i e v e i t was f o u r years 

ago, and t h a t was k i n d of the going r a t e a t t h a t time. 

They d i d not lease a t t h a t time. A number of the other 
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ones had. But there were also some owners t h a t appeared t o 

be unlocatable. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I guess t h a t ' s a word. We asked f o r a t i t l e 

o p i n i o n from the Hinkle f i r m i n l a t e November. As soon as 

we had the l a r g e mineral owner who owns the surface leased, 

we sent the o f f e r . And again, we knew who everyone was, 

according t o Calder Ezzell's o p i n i o n , a t l e a s t . We then 

made those i n i t i a l o f f e r of $50 an acre. 

Mrs. McGuffin, the l a r g e r mineral owner, had 

agreed t o lease but only a t $100 an acre. So I proposed 

the same t h i n g t o Mr. Spear and t o l d him t h a t since we had 

o r i g i n a l l y sent out of o f f e r s I could go w i t h a higher 

bonus and t r e a t everyone the same, but I could not go w i t h 

the q u a r t e r r o y a l t y . 

And he s a i d , Well, you know, we'd l i k e t o lease 

but we need a quarter r o y a l t y and, again, more money. He 

wanted $150 an acre, as w e l l as the higher r o y a l t y . And we 

s a i d we can't do t h i s . 

Q. Okay, so d i d you ever o f f e r any more than the 

3/16 r o y a l t y ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay, so the 3/16 was your f i r s t o f f e r and your 

l a s t o f f e r ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Okay. Now, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h what other 

leases go f o r i n t h i s area? 

A. Only from the — This i s f a i r l y w i l d area i n 

terms of Lea County. From, you know, past experience i t 

d i d not appear t h a t t h i s would be $150-, $200-an-acre 

country. And again, my c l i e n t here had been i n v o l v e d i n 

the l e a s i n g , W.T. Probandt was also i n v o l v e d i n the p r i o r 

d e a l . He's the g e o l o g i s t who's — t h i s prospect. So we 

were f a i r l y f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t . 

Randy Richardson who was the o l d landman, I t h i n k 

you know very w e l l i n Roswell, represented Mrs. McGuffin i n 

t h i s , and we d i d our n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h her through Randy, 

and he s a i d , Yes, t h i s i s — you know, t h i s — more than 

f a i r . 

Q. What was the going r a t e f o u r years e a r l i e r ? 

A. F i f t y — 

Q. Okay, and — 

A. — f i f t y d o l l a r s an acre. 

Q. I'm s o r r y , what r o y a l t y f o u r years e a r l i e r ? 

A. Three-sixteenths as w e l l . 

Q. Okay, t h i n g s had not changed i n t h a t four-year 

p e r i o d , the best you know? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 

A. There hadn't been any more d i s c o v e r i e s or 
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anything l i k e t h a t . 

Q. Now, you said i t ' s a w i l d area. Are t h e r e other 

producing w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

A. There's some San Andres w e l l s j u s t t o the n o r t h , 

Mr. Cavin, i n Section 19, t h a t I'm f a m i l i a r w i t h . I t h i n k 

t h a t Mr. Stubbs i n the A p r i l 19th hearing t e s t i f i e d as t o 

the other production i n t h i s area, but again I'm f a m i l i a r 

w i t h 19 because we've also t r i e d t o work trades up t h e r e i n 

the past. I t ' s p r e t t y marginal San Andres p r o d u c t i o n , i t ' s 

q u i t e a b i t of water w i t h i t . I t ' s expensive. 

Q. Okay. Now, so you would consider 3/16 and $100 

an acre as s o r t of your t a k e - i t - o r - l e a v e - i t o f f e r ; would 

t h a t be a f a i r c h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Now, can you t e l l me what the net revenue 

i n t e r e s t i s t o the working i n t e r e s t owners as i t now stands 

w i t h a 27-1/2-percent r o y a l t y t o Sun-West? 

A. I have not done t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n f o r t h e purpose 

of today's hearing, but we b a s i c a l l y would have 83-point-

some percent a t t h a t 81.25. And again, the r o y a l t y on the 

unleased i n t e r e s t of the Kirby and Neal was 87 1/2, l e a v i n g 

the Sun-West i n t e r e s t , depending on whether i t ' s leased or 

unleased — You'd have t o f a c t o r t h a t . I f i t was, you 

know, 87.5, then obviously we're going t o have a higher 

NRI. 
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Q. Well, l e t me ask you, assuming i t ' s a 27-1/2-

percent r o y a l t y , would i t be f a i r t o say t h a t the net 

revenue i n t e r e s t and the working i n t e r e s t owners would be 

i n the range of 78 percent? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yeah. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, when you went out and leased, 

d i d you j u s t s t r i c t l y do i t o f f what people are paying or 

l e a s i n g land i n t h a t area for? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t was c e r t a i n l y a c o n s i d e r a t i o n , yes. 

Q. Okay, so Mr. Stubbs' r e p o r t , where he gets i n t o 

3/16 r o y a l t y versus a quarter r o y a l t y , t h a t was — I mean, 

you d i d n ' t base your l e a s i n g on h i s economics, d i d you? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Now, have you reviewed Mr. Stubbs' r e p o r t ? 

A. B r i e f l y , yes. 

Q. Are you prepared t o t e s t i f y on the economics of 

t h i s venture today? 

A. That I would defer t o the p r i o r testimony of Mr. 

Stubbs, r e a l l y — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — yeah. 

Q. Okay, but do you remember h i s testimony on the 

r a t e of r e t u r n t h a t he had ascribed t o these v a r i o u s net 
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revenue i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. Yes, somewhat. I have t o q u a l i f y t h a t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I f I had a copy of i t here I could probably — I t 

seemed t o me l i k e , Mr. Cavin, t h a t he t e s t i f i e d t h a t a 

75-percent, he f e l t , was j u s t too r i s k y , and he had a r i s k 

f a c t o r associated w i t h various scenarios, you know, 

geology, i s t h i s going t o h i t the pay, e t c e t e r a . 

Q. Well, b a s i c a l l y — t e l l me i f I'm wrong — he 

b a s i c a l l y took an average w e l l c a l c u l a t i o n and then came up 

w i t h a r a t e of r e t u r n based on d i f f e r e n t net revenue 

scenarios? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And on what he says i s a q u a r t e r o v e r r i d e 

— and I b e l i e v e he means a r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t probably — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — he i n d i c a t e d t h a t the average w e l l would 

r e t u r n 2 0 percent. I s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h your 

r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t would be paying a $150 bonus. 

And here, you wouldn't be paying any bonus on t h i s lease, 

would you? 

A. On — ? 

Q. On the lease t h a t Gulf Coast now has. 
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A. No. 

Q. Okay. And the other case he described was a 3/16 

o v e r r i d e . Again, I assume t h a t he's r e f e r r i n g t o r o y a l t y ; 

would t h a t be — 

A. I t h i n k t h a t you're c o r r e c t t h e r e . 

Q. Okay, and a $100 bonus. And the r a t e of r e t u r n 

t h e r e i s 30 percent, and again t h i s i s on an average w e l l . 

I s t h a t your r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

A. Again, I would have t o look a t i t , but — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — yes. 

Q. And he d i d n ' t give any c r e d i t i n any of h i s 

c a l c u l a t i o n s f o r uphole pay or anything l i k e t h a t ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Again, I bel i e v e you're r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. And d i d he f a c t o r i n the f a c t t h a t B e t t i s 

would get a 200-percent penalty on the lease t o Gulf Coast? 

A. I honestly cannot r e c a l l t h a t one. 

Q. Okay. Now — So j u s t so I make a b s o l u t e l y sure, 

because th e r e was a l i t t l e b i t of confusion i n the 

A p p l i c a t i o n as opposed t o what we're di s c u s s i n g today, a t 

l e a s t from my perspective, you're not asking f o r a 

r e d u c t i o n i n the r o y a l t y , i n essence, you're j u s t asking 

t h a t i t a l l be t r e a t e d as unleased? 

A. Well, I don't know — I t h i n k — At the time the 
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a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , i t was unleased. 

Q. Okay, I'm sor r y , I'm asking about t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n t o reopen. I'm j u s t t r y i n g t o f i n d out what 

you're asking f o r here. Are you asking t h a t i t be t r e a t e d 

as unleased? 

A. We're asking t h a t the r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t of Sun-

West O i l and Gas, Inc., be t r e a t e d as 12-1/2-percent 

r o y a l t y — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — as opposed t o 27-1/2-percent. 

Q. Okay, so you're not suggesting t h a t you wouldn't 

recognize the Gulf Coast lease i n terms of what Gulf Coast 

has? Do you see the di f f e r e n c e ? 

A. Well, Gulf Coast — as i t stands r i g h t now, Gulf 

Coast has 100-percent working i n t e r e s t i n a 15-percent 

min e r a l i n t e r e s t lease w i t h a 2 7-1/2-percent r o y a l t y 

burden. 

Q. Yes. But what I understood i s , you were asking 

f o r t he D i v i s i o n t o t r e a t t h i s i n t e r e s t as being unleased. 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, i n which case, are you t r y i n g t o — are you 

asking t h a t the D i v i s i o n ignore the lease t o Gulf Coast? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So t h a t Gulf Coast wouldn't have any i n t e r e s t 

under what you're asking f o r ? 
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A. I b e l i e v e t h a t — w e l l — 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, I b e l i e v e 

he's being asked questions t h a t r e a l l y are the l e g a l 

argument. 

Our p o s i t i o n — I can s t a t e i t — i s , we don't 

q u a r r e l w i t h who holds the lease. We b e l i e v e t h a t the 

sequence i s such t h a t i t imposes an unreasonable burden on 

the t r a c t , and what we're lo o k i n g a t i s what the r o y a l t y 

burden i s . We're not saying you can't lease your p r o p e r t y 

t o anyone. Our argument w i l l , I t h i n k , c l a r i f y t h i s . But 

we're saying t h a t once you commence a p o o l i n g a c t i o n you 

can't lease i t t o y o u r s e l f and increase the burdens and add 

a d d i t i o n a l burdens t h a t run i n the face of what the OCD i s 

t r y i n g t o do. I ' l l e x p l a i n t h a t i n the argument. 

But our p o s i t i o n was c o r r e c t l y s t a t e d by Mr. 

Maloney. We bel i e v e t h a t the r o y a l t y burden should be 

12 1/2 percent, not 27 1/2 percent, whether i t ' s h e l d i n 

the name of Gulf Coast or Mr. Spear and h i s f a m i l y or hel d 

i n the name of Sun-West, Mr. Spear and h i s f a m i l y . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Does t h a t c l a r i f y , Mr. Cavin? 

MR. CAVIN: Well, I t h i n k what I heard him say 

was t h a t the Gulf Coast lease would be ignored. I s t h a t — 

You would s t i l l recognize t h a t ; i s t h a t what you're 

proposing? 

MR. CARR: Correct. 
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MR. CAVIN: Okay, yes, s i r , thank you. 

Q. (By Mr. Cavin) Mr. Maloney, I was going t o ask 

you some questions about the two e n t i t i e s , Sun-West and 

Gulf Coast. Can you remember e x a c t l y what Mr. Spear t o l d 

you when he was d e s c r i b i n g the two e n t i t i e s and t h e i r 

r e l a t i o n s h i p ? 

A. Only t h a t they were both f a m i l y companies. I n 

the d i r e c t o r y , as I r e c a l l , Nelson was the p r e s i d e n t and 

Shane was the v i c e p r e s i d e n t , and I had asked him because I 

had leased them before about — I t was my understanding 

Nelson was no longer president, Shane was now p r e s i d e n t , 

and he a f f i r m e d yes, t h a t ' s the same i n both companies. 

Q. Okay. I'm s o r r y , Armstrong d i r e c t o r y , what does 

t h a t t e l l you? Does i t t e l l you who the d i r e c t o r s are and 

the o f f i c e r s are, or — 

A. Generally, yes, the p r e s i d e n t and v i c e p r e s i d e n t , 

sometimes the secretary, t h e i r address, phone numbers. 

Q. Okay. Does i t t e l l you who the owners are? 

A. Not n e c e s s a r i l y . 

Q. Okay. So you wouldn't dispute the f a c t t h a t the 

ownership i s d i f f e r e n t i n these two e n t i t i e s ? Do you have 

any basis t o do t h a t ? 

A. No, I do not. I have not checked f u r t h e r , i n a l l 

honesty, on t h a t . 

Q. Okay, and i t wouldn't t e l l you t h a t anyway — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. No. 

Q. — Armstrong wouldn't? 

A. No. 

Q. And your sources i n Midland couldn't t e l l you 

t h a t e i t h e r , r i g h t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Now, would i t t e l l you t h a t Gulf Coast i s 

a Delaware corporation? 

A. I don't r e c a l l , I r e a l l y don't. I don't t h i n k 

so. I don't t h i n k i t shows i n the a r t i c l e s of 

i n c o r p o r a t i o n or w i t h the State. You'd have t o check w i t h 

the Secretary of State. As I r e c a l l , Sun-West was a Texas 

c o r p o r a t i o n . I can't r e c a l l , again, whether Gulf Coast 

showed as a Delaware or a Texas. I thought i t was Texas. 

Q. And how d i d you l e a r n t h a t Sun-West was a Texas 

c o r p o r a t i o n , I'm sorry? 

A. On t h e i r acknowledgements. 

Q. Okay. And you don't dispute t h a t t h e y ' r e 

separate l e g a l e n t i t i e s , do you? 

A. Again, I don't r e a l l y know e x a c t l y what — 

Q. I mean, d i d you make any — 

A. — they're c e r t a i n l y — 

Q. I'm s o r r y . 

A. — two d i f f e r e n t names. 

Q. Did you make any i n q u i r y t o a s c e r t a i n whether 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

29 

they're separate l e g a l e n t i t i e s ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. So i f I'm reading Mr. — and I'm jumping 

around on you, I apologize. I'm about t o f i n i s h up. I f 

I'm reading Mr. Stubbs' r e p o r t r i g h t , and we already 

covered t h i s , a quarter r o y a l t y i s a 2 0-percent r a t e of 

r e t u r n on an average w e l l , and the 3/16 r o y a l t y i s a 28-

percent r a t e of r e t u r n , I t h i n k you would agree w i t h me 

t h a t the 78-percent net or thereabouts t h a t you have would 

be somewhere between those two, r a t e of r e t u r n ? 

A. I would agree w i t h t h a t . 

Q. Okay. So b a s i c a l l y we're probably l o o k i n g a t 24-

something, roughly 24-percent r a t e of r e t u r n ? 

A. That I can't t e l l you on the exact r a t e of 

r e t u r n , I don't r e c a l l h i s — But as I r e c a l l , t he 25-

percent, he f e l t , was uneconomical i n today's market, w i t h 

the p r i c e s what they were. 

MR. CAVIN: Okay, I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Cavin. 

Any r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. CARR: No r e d i r e c t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I t ' s obvious i n reopening 

we're going t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e of the previous case i n 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r instance. 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . 
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EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Now I don't have the previous e x h i b i t s , but d i d 

you contact Gulf Coast o r i g i n a l l y , or was i t j u s t Sun-West? 

A. Sun-West. 

Q. So you d i d n ' t know anything about the Gulf Coast 

u n t i l a f t e r — 

A. No, s i r , i t was — 

Q. Well, i t ' s — 

A. I t h i n k i t was February the 2 0th when they faxed 

us a copy of the l e t t e r , and they sent i t t o Mr. Carr, and 

sent a copy of i t t o me, Mr. Examiner. And again, t h a t was 

the f i r s t I knew of them. 

Q. Okay, t h a t was the February 15th l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, s i r , they faxed us on the 20th. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: There being no other questions 

of Mr. Baker a t t h i s time, I t h i n k we're ready f o r c l o s i n g 

statements, l e g a l argument. 

MR. CARR: As the App l i c a n t , I o r d i n a r i l y would 

go l a s t , but I am prepared t o go anytime. Would you l i k e 

me t o argue? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Gentlemen, I ' l l l e t you 

decide. 

MR. CAVIN: Go ahead i f you want, B i l l . 

MR. CARR: I'm prepared t o go forward. I may 
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have a response a f t e r Mr. Cavin argues. 

I t h i n k we ought t o put t h i s i n some context. 

This i s a follow-up t o a hearing, a reopened case. The 

case was o r i g i n a l l y presented on the 19th of A p r i l . I t was 

a compulsory p o o l i n g case. And a t t h a t time n o t i c e of the 

a p p l i c a t i o n was provided t o Sun-West. They d i d not appear. 

The order was entered i n the case, but i t d i d n ' t 

address one of the questions r a i s e d , and t h a t was, how do 

you t r e a t an a d d i t i o n a l burden t h a t i s placed on a p r o p e r t y 

s u b j e c t t o p o o l i n g a f t e r the A p p l i c a t i o n was i n i t i a l l y 

f i l e d . 

Today I've c a l l e d a land witness who provided a 

chronology, and i t i s our b e l i e f t h a t t h e r e i s a t l e a s t 

overlapping i f not v i r t u a l l y i d e n t i c a l ownership between 

Sun-West and Gulf Coast. They've both had n o t i c e . And 

although we've asked a land witness t o speculate, we don't 

know. A l l we know i s , they used the same address, they 

have the same telephone number, they have l i s t e d i n a 

d i r e c t o r y the same o f f i c e r s , and when you c a l l e i t h e r of 

them you t a l k t o the same person on the phone. We assumed 

they were the same. 

But t h a t i s not an issue t h a t ' s going t o be 

d e t e r m i n a t i v e of what we're t r y i n g t o b r i n g t o you today. 

We're b r i n g i n g t o you an issue which we t h i n k i s of 

importance. I t ' s not completely new, and I ' l l get i n t o 
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t h a t i n a minute. S i m i l a r questions have been heard 

before. But i t i s an issue t h a t has a d i r e c t impact on 

t h i s and other p o o l i n g orders because of the precedent you 

can s e t . I t has a d i r e c t impact on your j u r i s d i c t i o n and 

your a b i l i t y t o c a r r y out your a u t h o r i t y under the O i l and 

Gas Act t o pool p r o p e r t i e s . 

And we are asking you t o issue an amended order 

and t r e a t the Sun-West/Gulf Coast i n t e r e s t as i f i t i s 

burdened w i t h a 1/8, 12-1/2-percent r o y a l t y , not a 27-1/2-

percent r o y a l t y . 

And the f a c t s t h a t you need t o consider t o 

address t h i s issue are r e l a t i v e l y simple. As r e q u i r e d by 

the O i l and Gas, the p a r t i e s negotiated w i t h one another. 

The OCD doesn't t e l l them what i s a good deal or what i s a 

bad d e a l ; every company's economics are d i f f e r e n t . But you 

r e q u i r e they attempt t o reach an agreement. And they d i d , 

they attempted. No agreement was reached. 

And the issue i n those n e g o t i a t i o n s was, how much 

of a r o y a l t y burden could be placed on t h i s i n t e r e s t and 

s t i l l have an economic prospect f o r B e t t i s , Boyle and 

S t o v a l l . And they t o l d Sun-West t h a t 25 percent was too 

h i g h . 

And i t reached a p o i n t where they were prepared 

t o go forward w i t h the w e l l , i t was set f o r t h i n the 

l e t t e r s t h a t are i n the record of t h i s case. 
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And when they couldn't reach an agreement they 

d i d what they're supposed t o do, they f i l e d an a p p l i c a t i o n 

seeking an order from t h i s D i v i s i o n p o o l i n g those lands. 

They provided n o t i c e t o Sun-West. Sun-West got the n o t i c e , 

7 t h of February, 6th of February, one of those days, and 

signed a r e t u r n r e c e i p t . I t ' s i n the record of the case. 

And a week l a t e r , on the 15th, having not been 

able t o reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement t o set a r o y a l t y r a t e , 

what d i d they do but they leased i t t o another company, 

Gulf Coast, same d i r e c t o r s , same address, same phone 

number, same person t o t a l k t o on the phone, and they put a 

15-percent a d d i t i o n a l burden on the p r o p e r t y . And a l l of a 

sudden they come and say, Well, go ahead, pool us. But by 

the way, what we couldn't reach i n terms of an agreement 

before you took i t i n t o the r e g u l a t o r y p r a c t i c e , we have 

done by p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t . We have 27-1/2-percent r o y a l t y 

burden. 

We submit they c o n t r a c t u a l l y changed the game a t 

t h a t time, a f t e r we were before the r e g u l a t o r y body. 

I t h i n k the question here i s not whether or not 

Gulf Coast owns the working i n t e r e s t or Sun-West. We don't 

care. We'll pay whoever i s the r i g h t f u l owner of t h a t 

i n t e r e s t . 

But the question here, i s t h i s i n t e r e s t t o be 

t r e a t e d , f o r the purposes of the p o o l i n g order, as the 
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unleased mineral i n t e r e s t t h a t i t was when the a p p l i c a t i o n 

was f i l e d , or as a leased i n t e r e s t burdened w i t h a 27-1/2-

percent r o y a l t y ? 

Now, we submit t h a t unless you agree t h a t t h i s 

r e g u l a t o r y scheme we work i n can be circumvented by a 

p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t , t h a t you must t r e a t the i n t e r e s t as an 

unleased mineral i n t e r e s t . And th e r e i s precedent f o r what 

we ask. And I have the orders and I ' l l p rovide copies t o 

a l l of you here i n a minute. 

I n a case, Number 8640 — t h i s i s a 1985 case i n 

which Caulkins O i l Company was here. They were concerned 

t h a t a t r a c t they were t r y i n g t o pool had a r o y a l t y burden 

on i t t h a t was unreasonable and would a f f e c t t h e i r economic 

a b i l i t y t o d r i l l the w e l l . And the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n pooled the lands and d i r e c t e d the p a r t i e s t o 

reduce the o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y , because t o do otherwise 

would be t o enter a compulsory p o o l i n g order under terms 

t h a t were not j u s t and reasonable t o the p a r t y who was 

d r i l l i n g the w e l l . And I have copies of t h a t order. 

I n 1998, Order Number R-11,109, Nearburg 

E x p l o r a t i o n Company was attempting t o pool a t r a c t . That 

t r a c t had — One of the p a r t i e s being pooled was M e r i t 

Energy Company, and they had what the order says i s an 

i n t e r n a l net p r o f i t s i n t e r e s t , the d e t a i l s of which had not 

been d i s c l o s e d t o Nearburg, which might unnecessarily 
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burden M e r i t ' s working i n t e r e s t . 

And what d i d the OCD do? Well, the OCD s a i d t h a t 

they were going t o t r e a t the f u l l working i n t e r e s t , 

i n c l u d i n g the net p r o f i t s i n t e r e s t , as being s u b j e c t t o the 

cost of d r i l l i n g , the cost of completion and the pen a l t y . 

That's what we're asking you t o do here today. 

We1 r e saying we don 11 care what they do today or what they 

d i d a t any time a f t e r our A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d . But the 

i n t e r e s t s are f i x e d on t h a t date, and your j u r i s d i c t i o n — 

An operator can't go out and s t a r t p l a y i n g games. I f so, I 

guess I ' d advise everyone I represent t o form a sham 

company. 

And i f Mr. Cavin's c l i e n t s are t r y i n g t o pool 

you, w e l l , a f t e r you get the p o o l i n g n o t i c e , pass i t t o 

y o u r s e l f and carve out a b i g r o y a l t y or an o v e r r i d e , or 

create a net p r o f i t s i n t e r e s t . And do these t h i n g s because 

the net e f f e c t i s t o take the burden o f f of you and put the 

burden on the guy who's going t o bear the r i s k of 

developing the property, who's going t o pay the cost , who's 

going t o d r i l l the w e l l . And you said i n the Nearburg case 

t h a t t h a t i s something you cannot do. 

And I submit t h a t both of those — one's a net-

p r o f i t s i n t e r e s t and one's an o v e r r i d e , n e i t h e r are r o y a l t y 

— both of them are good precedent f o r the issue before you 

today. 
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I n 1997 there was a case, Branko, I n c . , e t a l . 

This i s a case t h a t was a complicated matter before the 

D i v i s i o n and the Commission on a number of occasions. The 

order i n t h a t case, the f i n a l order, i s Order Number 

R-10,672-A. 

This involved a po o l i n g case. There were 

i n t e r e s t s t h a t were not of record. And a t the time of the 

hearing, Branko's counsel came i n and s a i d , There are 

d i f f e r e n t p a r t i e s you need t o pool, although t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t s aren't of record. Here they are. M i t c h e l l 

Energy went ahead, stood on the p o o l i n g order and s a i d they 

weren't of record on the day we f i l e d . The day you f i l e i s 

the day t h a t counts. 

And the O i l Conservation Commission entered an 

order, and i t concluded t h a t they weren't e n t i t l e d t o 

n o t i c e . I t f i n d s i n the conclusions of law t h a t are on 

pages 8 and 9 of t h i s order — and I have copies of t h i s — 

b a s i c a l l y i t notes t h a t under New Mexico law these are 

i n t e r e s t s t h a t must be recorded i n the county, t h a t they 

were not on the day the A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , and as such 

these people were not e n t i t l e d t o n o t i c e . 

We submit t h a t t h a t same theory a p p l i e s here. 

The i n t e r e s t on the day our A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d was 

simply t h a t we were deal i n g w i t h an unleased m i n e r a l 

i n t e r e s t . 
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Now, what do you do w i t h an unleased m i n e r a l 

i n t e r e s t ? We have a pooli n g s t a t u t e . I t says where you've 

got more than one i n t e r e s t i n a spacing u n i t , where one 

i n t e r e s t owner proposes t o d r i l l , has a r i g h t t o d r i l l and 

can't reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement, i t says then you b r i n g 

an a p p l i c a t i o n here, and a f t e r n o t i c e and hearing, t h e 

s t a t u t e says, the D i v i s i o n s h a l l enter an order p o o l i n g 

s a i d lands. 

And we r e c i t e t h a t over and over again t o you, 

every week I come over here and r e c i t e . I t ' s a very easy 

way t o p r a c t i c e law, you only have t o memorize one s e c t i o n 

of s t a t u t e . 

But i t goes on beyond t h a t , and i t says, and I 

quote, " I f the i n t e r e s t of any owner or owners of any 

unleased mineral i n t e r e s t i s pooled by v i r t u e of t h i s a c t , 

seven-eighths of such i n t e r e s t s h a l l be considered as a 

working i n t e r e s t and one-eighth s h a l l be considered a 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , and he s h a l l i n a l l events be p a i d one-

e i g h t h of a l l production from the u n i t and c r e d i t a b l e t o 

h i s i n t e r e s t . " 

The statue says i f we come before you and are 

po o l i n g an unleased mineral owner, you t r e a t i t as 1/8-7/8. 

And we submit i n t h i s case we came before you and we sought 

t o pool an unleased mineral i n t e r e s t , and t h a t i n t e r e s t by 

s t a t u t e should be d i v i d e d 7/8-1/8, and t h a t a f t e r t he f a c t , 
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when faced w i t h t h a t , a p a r t y cannot be allowed t o run out 

and enter a p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t t o circumvent the r e g u l a t o r y 

process. 

I t r i e d t o f i n d a case on p o i n t , and I don't know 

i f i t ' s a r e f l e c t i o n on me or the s t a t u s of the law, but 

the case i s a 19 3 8 Oklahoma case, i t ' s Pa t t e r son v s . 

S t a n o l i n d O i l , and i t ' s 77 P a c i f i c 2nd 83. But i t ' s h e l d 

t h a t p a r t i e s by p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t , agreement or assignment 

cannot circumvent or preclude the Corporation Commission — 

the Oklahoma e n t i t y — from e x e r c i s i n g i t s j u r i s d i c t i o n and 

a u t h o r i t y . 

I f you l e t p a r t i e s s t a r t passing the b a l l around 

and c a r v i n g out i n t e r e s t , I submit you're a u t h o r i z i n g 

p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t s , agreements and assignments t o run r i g h t 

s t r a i g h t i n the face of your j u r i s d i c t i o n , and you cannot 

a l l o w t h a t t o happen. The numbers w i l l always be 

d i f f e r e n t , i t may be a r o y a l t y , i t may be an o v e r r i d e , i t 

may be a production payment, but the issue i s always the 

same. 

They're changing the game. They're t r y i n g t o 

do — by passing i t back and f o r t h among themselves or a 

f r i e n d or an arm's length t r a n s a c t i o n , they are s t i l l going 

t o be changing the ownership and p u t t i n g a d d i t i o n a l burden 

on the p a r t y who's going t o take the r i s k , who's going t o 

d r i l l the w e l l , and who's going t o a c t u a l l y be going 
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forward developing the minerals of the State of New Mexico, 

and they're going t o put a d d i t i o n a l burden on them i n a way 

t h a t i s outside the Act. 

Now, Texas doesn't have a compulsory p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e , and I would submit t h a t t h e r e are many w e l l s t h a t 

might have been d r i l l e d i n Texas, had they had such an act . 

Whether, i n f a c t , the f i n a l numbers s i f t out here 

i n a way t h a t means t h a t t h i s w e l l won't be d r i l l e d , I 

can't say f o r sure. But I can say what's happened here 

a f t e r we f i l e d our A p p l i c a t i o n increased the burden and i s 

making those who want t o go forward r e t h i n k t h i s issue. 

I f a w e l l i s n ' t d r i l l e d , I submit t o you t h a t ' s 

waste. And I submit, i f you don't take your stand on t h i s 

case, you're opening a door t h a t w i l l undercut your 

j u r i s d i c t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: What were the f a c t s of t h a t Oklahoma 

case, you say? 

MR. CARR: S i r , i t ' s an o l d , o l d d e c i s i o n . I ' l l 

be happy t o give i t t o you. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, w e l l , I'm sure we can get i t , 

but — 

MR. CARR: But i t i s — 

MR. BROOKS: You — 

MR. CARR: — obviously even o l d e r than me. 

MR. BROOKS: — decide i t as a p r o p o s i t i o n of law 
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i n which — 

MR. CARR: Yeah — 

MR. BROOKS: — the one side — 

MR. CARR: — r i g h t . 

MR. BROOKS: — a case of any age f o r a 

p r o p o s i t i o n of law, I ' d k i n d of l i k e t o know i f the law was 

ap p l i e d on — 

MR. CARR: I can — 

MR. BROOKS: — f a c t s t h a t were any way s i m i l a r . 

MR. CARR: Sure, and I can provide t h a t t o you 

along w i t h the orders. 

I have also, and I w i l l admit a f t e r the hearing, 

w i t h the orders, a memorandum and some proposed f i n d i n g s . 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. 

MR. CARR: And I w i l l get t h a t case f o r you. 

MR. BROOKS: Thank you. 

MR. CARR: I looked a t i t , but I was l o o k i n g a t 

i t f a s t , I d i d n ' t — and — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Or i f you can — I t ' s i n the 

O i l and Gas Repor ter , i s n ' t i t ? 

MR. CARR: Well, i t ' s — P a c i f i c s i t e . I have 

i t ~ 

MR. BROOKS: I t ' s too o l d t o be i n the O i l and 

Gas Repor ter — 

MR. CARR: I t ' s i n an o l d — 
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MR. BROOKS: — i f i t ' s 1938. 

MR. CARR: I t ' s an o l d case — 

MR. BROOKS: They d i d n ' t s t a r t the O i l and Gas 

Repor te r u n t i l about 1951, I don't b e l i e v e . 

MR. CARR: I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . I t ' s a 1938 

case, but we do have a copy — 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, w e l l — 

MR. CARR: — w e ' l l get i t t o you. 

MR. BROOKS: — i f y o u ' l l f u r n i s h us — 

MR. CARR: — I w i l l — 

MR. BROOKS: — we'd appreciate i t . 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Cavin? 

MR. CAVIN: Yes, s i r , Mr. Examiner. 

F i r s t of a l l , your o r i g i n a l order was obviously 

w e l l thought out and c a r e f u l l y considered, and t h e r e was a 

great deal of discussion a t the p r i o r hearing on t h i s very 

issue. So we c e r t a i n l y b e l i e v e t h a t the order may not have 

addressed i t , but i t i n our view addressed by omission. 

F i r s t of a l l I would say the r e was not a good 

f a i t h e f f o r t t o ob t a i n v o l u n t a r y agreement. They simply 

went out and found out what the biggest lease owner would 

lease f o r , and they used t h a t as t h e i r standard, and they 

hammered t h a t home t o everyone. They d i d n ' t budge from 

t h a t . And i n my book t h a t ' s not a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o 
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reach v o l u n t a r y agreement, and I t h i n k the r e c o r d w i l l show 

t h a t i n terms of the l e t t e r s they sent and also the 

testimony today and a t the 19th hearing. 

We of course t h i n k t h a t the D i v i s i o n should stay 

out of p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t s , and by i n t e r j e c t i n g themselves i n 

t h i s s i t u a t i o n , we t h i n k you'd be g e t t i n g r i g h t i n the 

middle of i t . 

These are separate l e g a l e n t i t i e s , one of them i s 

a Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n . They've been set up f o r some time 

now. They're not sham e n t i t i e s . They've got d i f f e r e n t 

ownership. One of them i s a Subchapter S Corporation, 

which i s a pass-through e n t i t y , one of them i s a Subchapter 

C Corporation. They serve d i f f e r e n t purposes, the 

ownership i s d i f f e r e n t , and f r a n k l y t hey're separate l e g a l 

e n t i t i e s , and we can't agree t h a t t h i s i s a sham 

t r a n s a c t i o n . 

We b e l i e v e i t would be a serious problem — Well, 

we t h i n k there's a serious issue on the a u t h o r i t y of t h e 

D i v i s i o n t o reduce the r o y a l t y or t r e a t t h i s as unleased 

when, i n f a c t , i t ' s leased a t the time you're e n t e r i n g the 

p o o l i n g order. And t o the extent t h a t the D i v i s i o n may 

have a u t h o r i t y , i t should only be used i n e x t r a o r d i n a r y 

cases. 

And c l e a r l y , t h i s i s an e x t r a o r d i n a r y case. By 

t h e i r own witness, the r a t e of r e t u r n i s somewhere between 
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2 0 and 3 0 percent on these w e l l s , and t h a t ' s i f you take 

the average w e l l s , i f you don't f a c t o r i n upside p o t e n t i a l 

and i f you don't f a c t o r i n the 2 00-percent p e n a l t y t h a t 

t h e y ' r e going t o get on the lease t o Gulf Coast. 

I would also p o i n t out — I c e r t a i n l y d i d n ' t come 

prepared t o rebut a l l of the cases t h a t Mr. Carr has c i t e d . 

I would, however, speak t o the Branko case, since we were 

u n f o r t u n a t e enough t o be on the l o s i n g side of t h a t case 

t h a t went a l l the way up. 

F i r s t of a l l , we t h i n k Branko i s d i s t i n g u i s h a b l e 

i n i t s f a c t s , and we t h i n k i t was wrongly decided, and i t 

could be a problem f o r the D i v i s i o n . 

Mr. Carr noted that Branko holds that if there 

isn't an instrument of record, that's the controlling 

event. And we think that is bad law. If the parties have 

actual notice, that's really the triggering event, in our 

view, both in courts and before regulatory forums, and 

certainly in the public records, actual — where a pure 

notice state and actual notice is more important than 

constructive notice. So we would distinguish Branko. 

So i n summary we beli e v e your p r i o r order should 

be a f f i r m e d w i t h o u t m o d i f i c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I s the r e anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. CARR: Very b r i e f l y . I would j u s t note t h a t 

t here's no l i m i t i n the O i l and Gas Act on your 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

44 

j u r i s d i c t i o n , no r e s t r i c t i o n t h a t I can f i n d i n the Act 

t h a t would preclude you from reducing or d i r e c t i n g as t o 

how a r i s k penalty should apply t o the i n t e r e s t s t h a t are 

sub j e c t t o one of your p o o l i n g orders. The p o o l i n g s t a t u t e 

expressly says you're p o o l i n g a l l i n t e r e s t s . I t references 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners. 

And so, one, you can pool them, and I t h i n k under 

the general powers of the s t a t u t e you can determine t o what 

i n t e r e s t the penalty w i l l apply. 

We're not here c h a l l e n g i n g the lease. They can 

lease i t t o Gulf Coast or t o anyone they want. We're 

simply s t a t i n g t h a t when you ordered t h a t a pe n a l t y w i l l be 

imposed, you should have ordered t h a t i t w i l l apply t o 

t h e i r working i n t e r e s t , but t h a t i n so doing i t w i l l 

i n c l u d e any r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t t h a t was carved out of t h a t 

working i n t e r e s t a f t e r the date the A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. CAVIN: Well, I would j u s t simply note, we 

t h i n k t h e r e are serious due-process c o n s i d e r a t i o n s , and 

the r e would be r e a l l y a t a k i n g here. And so t h e r e may be 

a u t h o r i t y i n e x t r a o r d i n a r y circumstances, but we c e r t a i n l y 

don't see i t here. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: What would be a s u f f i c i e n t 

amount of time t o get the w r i t t e n comments i n , gentlemen? 

MR. CARR: I ' l l be happy t o f i l e mine today, 
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they ' r e ready t o be f i l e d . And then whatever Mr. Cavin 

needs t o respond would be f i n e w i t h me. 

MR. CAVIN: Okay, maybe a week, i f t h a t would be 

acceptable? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: A week, t h a t would be f i n e . 

MR. CAVIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm s o r r y , I'm going t o 

be i n Alaska next week, I apologize. I'm l e a v i n g Saturday. 

Just skipped my mind. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I assume you're asking f o r a 

l i t t l e b i t — 

MR. CAVIN: Well, I r e a l i z e d as I s a i d t h a t , t h a t 

I'm t h i n k i n g a week ahead, and I'm r e a l l y t h i n k i n g two 

weeks ahead. I'm going t o be out of the o f f i c e s t a r t i n g 

Saturday. So w i t h permission I ' d l i k e two weeks. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Two weeks. 

MR. CARR: I f he had a work matter t h a t was 

bogging him down, I wouldn't o b j e c t , but... I have no 

o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Two weeks i s not an 

unreasonable amount of time. 

MR. CAVIN: Thank you. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So w e ' l l accept your w r i t t e n 

comments a t t h i s time, and you have a copy prepared f o r Mr. 

Cavin. 

Mr. Brooks, i s there anything f u r t h e r ? 
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MR. BROOKS: No, I — s a t i s f i e d , await the 

w r i t t e n comments. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: With t h a t , since there's 

n o t h i n g f u r t h e r i n Reopened Case 12,601, h o l d the reco r d 

open f o r two weeks, pending Mr. Cavin*s response, which 

w e ' l l then take i t under advisement. 

Gentlemen, thank you very much. 

MR. CARR: Thank you, Mr. Stogner. 

MR. CAVIN: Thank you, Mr. Stogner. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

11:36 a.m.) 
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